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Lydstep

SS089979                                                                  Penally

Surveyed Nov/Dec 1995 by STF and SP, WHGT form completed and reported to RCAMW. Not transferred to the this Word Document.

Sir John Wynford Philipps, First Viscount St Davids  1860 – 1938.

Felsted, Keeble (Oxford) and the Law.

1898 – 1908 Liberal MP Pembrokeshire.

1890 crisis at Baring Bros: helped to sort it out becoming a power in Trust Companies (Chairman of twelve!)

South American railways.

1908 created baron.

1914 Privy Council

1918 created a viscount.

His wealth enabled him to buy back some of his ancestral estates.

He married in 1888 Leonora Gerstenberg of London. Two sons both killed in WW1. Wife died 1915.

Married in 1916 Elizabeth Frances Rawden-Hastings whose three ancient baronies were called out of abeyance. One son who lived later at Roch Castle and one daughter. 

(NLW Dale Castle MSS)

In the early 19th century John Adams (Holyland, Pembroke?) quarried at the point and built a house near the shore. It was never recorded as an important gentry house and Francis Jones does not mention it in his book. In 1830 John Adams was living there.

In 1850 Edward Wilson who later moved to Hean Castle lived there.

Purchased from Capt. JAP Adams in 1898 (some sources say c1888 but he wasn’t an MP by then) by John Wynford Philipps. He and his brothers were imposingly tall and he, Sir Ivor of Cosheston and the future Lord Kylsant were known as “the three sons of Anak” (who he?). For several years the three were MP’s at the same time.

Erasmus Colwyn Philipps (1898-1915 kept a scrap book (PRO) and a poem of his

speaks of the “wing after wing” added, of the “long imposing drive” and the “hundreds of planted trees”.

Beautiful lawns were developed on which functions were held.

J.W.Philipps was a noted agriculturalist who bred Castlemartin Blacks and kept studs of Shire and Thoroughbred horses. He purchased Roch Castle and spent £20,000 making a mansion of it. His third home was Lanwade Hall at Newmarket.

When he came to sell and leave Lydstep in (?)1927 cottagers were offered the choice: your cottage or £100?  Those who chose the money became something of a laughing stock.

Lydstep estate was bought by the 8th Earl of Essex (de Vere Capell) who lived there a few years. He kept an aeroplane in a hanger near Manorbier station.

He sold to Col. John Edward Grimble Groves whose wife (widow?) lived there during the war when the whole estate was taken over by the army.

After the war the estate was put on the market.  T.W.Harcourt-Roberts of Little Milford (an engineer by profession) applied to build a cement works which would cost £1,500,000, occupy 500 acres between Lystep point and the railway and employ 600 men. “The scheme” ,he said, “will totally solve Pembrokeshire’s unemployment problems”. It was rejected.

Harry Victor Thomas, a Pembroke man who was successful in London business and who had visited Lydstep in the army purchased it and developed the Caravan Park.

Pevsner 2004 states:

The cottages and farm buildings with bright red pantiled roofs are the results of remodelling c 1912 by Baillie Scott and Beresford for the (future) Lord St Davids.

Lydstep House;  Inside the robustly eclectic Arts and Crafts details, reputedly instigated by Lady St Davids, surely suggest Baillie Scott and Beresford were involved.

West Lodge:  Built in 1912 in Arts and Crafts style by M.H.Baillie Scott and E.Beresford for….native stone with red tiled roof….bargeboards were substituted for the intended copings and the house was not colourwashed as planned.  In their Houses and Gardens (1933), where the building is illustrated, the architects lamented that the client “considered an umbrella better than a mackintosh, resulting in the flimsy picturesque associated with a cuckoo clock.”  The Arts and Craft style found little favour in the county and in 1912 the Tenby Observer recorded that West Lodge had “evoked severe criticism for its unconventional design” 

Visit with RG at the request of a gardening group of caravan owners who propose to tidy up some of the garden behind the house

The walled garden has lost all its buildings; much of it is tarmacadamed and caravans but the north wall largely survives together with remains of buildings on the north side. The bases of the cold frame remains and a stone arch into the yard behind the SW corner of the house. The “coachhouse” appears to have been a garage for one car.

A slight gradient rises northwards from the cold frame area. It is about 70m long and about 10m wide with two wide footpaths leading westwards and upwards into the wooded bank. About half way along, on the west side begins a low, well constucted limestone wall; another similar runs across the north end and a short flight of steps goes up from the NW corner. At the NE corner a wider flight descends and curves right onto the paved area behind the house.  About 10m southwards a steep, formal flight goes straight down to the middle terrace of the amphitheatre structure roughly shown on the 2nd edition map. Southwards again another flight descends and curves around the south end of the southerly theatre.

The north terraced amphitheatre has two semicircular levels to grass. The retaing limestone walls have (later?) decorative tops with channels for planting. Some cotoneasters.

The south structure has been altered to accommodate a fuel store at the south end at house level. A stone wall has been built up to the first terrace level and back-filled. Central R. ponticum. One semicircular terrace above difficult now to enter. 

Documents in file:

Text

Completed WHGT survey form

B&W photograph by H. Mortimer Allen (early 20C?)

Poor photocopy of photograph of mansion and seafront  (Ann Marks)  

